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COMMANDER’S LOG 
At this year’s MOWW National Convention in Annapolis, MD, one of the major events was the adoption of a new 2023-2028 Strategic Plan.  The six strategic goals in the plan are listed at the end of this newsletter.   
Strategic Goal Five: Increase the number of chapters and strengthen existing chapters.
The objectives under this goal:

>Attract, develop, and retain a dedicated volunteer force to carry out the Order’s community outreach mission at all levels of the Order.

>Seek and identify energized leaders to achieve success individually and collectively at all levels of the Order.
>Strategically establish new chapters in opportunity-rich locations with high potential leaders and large number of eligible members.

>Develop at all levels of the Order the tools and skills required for all chapters to succeed.

As support for this and other goals, the Order hired Jenna Tomas as MOWW’s New Outreach Program Manager.  Jenna comes with a wealth of non-profit and program management experience.  She will be working to promote, professionalize and advance our outreach programs.  She can be reached at jtomas@moww.org. (703) 683-4911 Ext. 3.
In the coming months, we will see details on proposals of how to implement these objectives on a local basis.
Don’t forget to contribute to the CINC’s solicitation.  It is very helpful in supporting the many activities that are supported out of the national headquarters. 
Please review the articles about the possible name change for the Order on pages 16-18 in the January-February 2024 issue of the Officer Review.  This issue will be voted on in the 2024 National Meeting.
The MOWW Policy Manual, dated 5 January 2024 has been posted to the moww.org website.

  THIS MONTH’S SPEAKER 
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“The evolution of warfare and what it portends for the U.S. military”.
This month’s speaker will be Captain Mark Davis, USN (Ret) and Associate Laboratory Director of Weapons Production Chief Operating Officer.  Captain Davis will discuss the key innovations since the late 18th century that have fundamentally changed warfare, and what that can mean going forward for the U.S. military, especially given the present geopolitical situation.
After completing a four year enlisted tour as a Navy Seabee, Davis received his commission through the NROTC program, graduating as the outstanding student in his department from San Diego State University with a Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering. He served as an officer on several submarines eventually serving as Commanding Officer on two boats as well as the Commodore of Task Force Six Nine. His post-command shore tours included serving on the staff of the Combined Joint Task Force, Horn of Africa, in Djibouti, Africa, as the Navy’s Deputy Chief of Legislative Affairs in the Pentagon, and on the staff of the Deputy Secretary to the Department of Energy.  Davis joined the Laboratory after serving as senior vice president of NNSA Operations and Programs for Savannah River Nuclear Solutions at the Department of Energy's Savannah River Site. He assumed his current position as the Associate Laboratory Director of Weapons Production (ALDWP) Chief Operating Officer in April 2022.  In this role, he is responsible for continuing to build operational discipline, consistency, and effectiveness across all ALDWP operations and facilities.
MEETING DETAILS
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This month’s meeting will be on Tuesday February 20th.  We will meet in the Los Alamos Research Park building room 203A.  The building is labelled Hot Rocks Café in the map.  The meeting will begin with a social period at 6:00 PM followed by a brief business meeting at 6;30 PM.  There may be a presentation starting at about 7:15 PM. 
The Military Order of the World Wars meetings are open to all interested people for dinner and program with RSVP, or the program only at no cost. .  The cost for dinner is $25.  Please call Robert Hull 1-505-328-1502 for reservations.  A reservation is a commitment to pay.  The dinner menu is cranberry meatloaf with appropriate sides.
The meeting will be a hybrid session including Zoom online.  Zoom session will start at about 6:00 PM.  Zoom details will be in the reminder email several days before the meeting.
LAST MONTH: SPEAKER         
The speaker at our January 16th dinner was Robert Hull who spoke on “Spy Recruiting: The Good, The Bad, and The Ugly”.
I'm going to talk about tonight is spy recruiting, of course, and some of the good things and bad things and one of my own personal experiences many years ago. I should say one of my many experiences happened many years ago and I would imagine that most people here because you live in this town it's very possible that you've actually know or have met a spy because what we do here.  It's one of the third highest per capita spy location in the U.S.  Some people have said that, and there's, of course, lots of different kinds of spies. There are people who are data miners.  There are people who just go out and collect information and send back to the companies. Of course, everybody spies on every one of them.  On the control side. there are lots of people that may be here who are just simply collecting information. So they're not being particularly subversive.  They're collecting information where they may be, and then there's other folks who may be subversive and actually trying to get information out of people.  The good, the bad, and the ugly part of it.

Obviously, it's good spying as if it's your spying. Right? Because they're collecting information for your kind, for your comfort.  But there are lots of spies that we've had who weren't good for us at all.  Some of those people you probably recognize.  One thing you probably didn't know is probably the highest level of spies ever was a man named Lauchlin Curie, who was in the White House.  He was a secretary of President Roosevelt and an economic advisor.  He was from Canada, and he was actually in that position from 1939 to 1945 and he was spying for the Soviets.  We didn't know that until the Venona transcripts when this information came out. So he had actually made it.  There were people that suspected that.  After that, they revoked his visa so he couldn't come into the United States.  On the American side, he was probably the highest level. 

You've got somebody like for the CIA, Aldrich Aimes, who may have heard of him, a very notorious spy.   The reason why he was, as you'd say ugly, is because he gave away names of our covert ops folks in Russia.  Many of them were killed. Same thing with Robert Hanson with the FBI.  Robert Hanson's job was he was the one who was supposed to be looking for people within the FBI who were moles, of all things.  In fact, that's what he was.  Because of that, he knew what people were looking for.  So he actually became sort of difficult to find.  He was there from 1979 to 2001. So he had been aspiring longer than many, many people.

As my CIA friends tell me, spies last only about five years.  Do you have an idea of why that would be?  How do they get caught, or do they get killed?   I guess that's the question. How do they get caught?  It's actually follow of the money.  Many of them get greedy or they have money.  They buy things that are beyond their means, and the FBI keeps track of people who are doing this kind of work.  We all know those things. We've had clearances.    We've been checked up on all the time.  So that's how they get caught, usually.  So Hanson actually got away with it longer than most people. 

Then for the Defense Intelligence Agency, we have Anna Montes.  Anybody ever heard of Anna Montes?  She was the highest level Cuban spy in our government.  She was at the Defense Intelligence Agency. She was the person who was actually doing all of our intelligence for Cuba and, and Central and South America.  So she was our top spy on those countries. But in fact, she was feeding information to Cuba, and she got away with it for quite a while.

As you can she was there from 1984 to 2001. 

Then we've got somebody who was just indicted last December, Victor Manuel Rocha.  He was he was an ambassador to the Argentinians and other countries.  He was an advisor to the U.S. Military Southern Command.  What some people have said is that the Cubans were probably the best at placing spies at the highest level of any country, as far as we know.

Then the U.S. Navy had John Anthony Walker who joined the Navy in 1987.  He was probably one of the most dangerous.  He was a Chief Warrant Officer in the Navy. and he ended up getting his sons, relatives, good friend Jerry Whitmer all to spy for money.  But when he went, and in fact Oliver James and Robert Hanson and John Anthony Walker were not actually recruited by the Soviets.  They actually just went over to the Soviets and said, I want money, and here's my modified piece, which is, I'll give you a list of the agents in Russia.  Then we've got, more recently, we've got Thomas Zhao and Patrick Wei, who are Chinese.  They gave a lot of information to the Chinese about ship movements, about operations, about exercises, about equipment, very good information. 

Then this last one I threw in here, just, just to kind of tweak.  Does anybody know Peter Lee?  Peter Lee was actually here at LANL.  He was also at Livermore for eight years, and he went to TRW. He was a naturalized citizen, and he gave classified information to the Chinese government.  The interesting thing about it is he never was prosecuted.  That was because the FBI people had bundled the case.  The reason why they bundled it is because there was an FBI double agent for the Chinese involved in the investigation.  So the whole thing got totally screwed up, and so he was never prosecuted.  It's a long, interesting story, but he actually worked here for a while.
 So, the language of espionage was interesting. As I said, I was never a handler or case officer.  I worked in Air Force Security Service in signals and electronic intelligence, as an operative analyst in the Middle East, which I'm going to talk about a little bit later here.  When you do these things, you still have to know about these things.  Because of what you do and what you're collecting, obviously, you want to know what your adversary knows.  So, we're, collecting some information on Soviets, because the Soviets want to know what we know. There are lots of different terms, and these terms you may know about because of watching movies and things.  For example, From Russian With Love, who do they watch in From Russian With Love?  Actually, some of that stuff is real, because that's who I was at the time when that stuff was going on.  I'll talk a little bit more about that in a minute.  You have case officers, you have handlers, controllers, agents, all these different terms for people, you know, but, a lot of different people end up recruiting people.  So the terminology here really isn't that important  except people like double agents. 

Double agents are important.  Anybody here hear of Oleg Gordievsky?  You know who that was?  Oleg Gordievsky was the highest level Russian agent that the West had.  He was actually in London.  He was the KGB station chief in London, but he actually worked for the British.  He was in Turkey when I was in Turkey.   Because he was the station chief for the KGB in Turkey when I was there, and he ended up feeding us a lot of information that allowed us to capture a lot of different people, Soviet agents, and so forth. 

 Then recruiting.  How do you actually ask somebody to spy for the United States against your country?  Right now, actually, that very first slide I showed you, the cover slide, is from a video produced by the CIA early in 2023 to be sent on by a Telegram, which is the psychosupplements program in Russia.  They developed this little video clip to recruit Russians because right now of the conditions in Russia,  there's a lot of discord about the military,  the kind of kids and brothers and sisters or whatever they're involved in the war, and the Ukrainians.  As a consequence, it's probably the best time ever to really find people here. So recruiting is easy in some cases, and not so easy in other cases.  I'll talk more about recruiting than just doing. 

Training and handling.  Once you get somebody who is willing to do things for you, you actually need to train them in how to do it.  How do you collect the information?  How do you get it to us?  Everybody's heard of dead rocks?  Interesting thing is that when I was going to high school in Florida, there was a dead rock from a Soviet spy in Mexico.  In Tampa, there's a MacDill AFB.  The dead rock location is right in my way to school, and I have pictures of this place where this dead rock was, this location.  I used to go right by it all the time, and it was all happening when I was in high school.  There's a book about it.  So, how do you do this?  How do you collect the information?  They used to work with Minox cameras.  The little Minox cameras were given to spies so they could take pictures, and then you could film them back.   So that was an important thing. 

Then ultimately, turning the agent over to another agent for who know how long.  Look at Roca with Ana Montes, who spied for 20 or 30 years.  We'd probably have to go through several different case offices and handlers for people in London. 

 What they figured out is that there's four things that motivate people to these lies, and it's the acronym MICE, which stands for money, ideology, a compromise, ego.  The money part is pretty obvious.  A lot of people do it.  Aldridge Ames and Robert Hanson both did it.  They had mistresses and so forth, and they wanted to change their life.  One guy wanted a Jaguar, and a handsome house, and all kinds of stuff.  He paid off his bills, but then he wasn't making that much money.  Hanson was smarter because he actually was in silver.  The guy was in silver bullion because silver bullion is not serial numbered.  Gold bullion is.  So silver is not traceable basically.

Ideology, Ana Montes, Victor Manuel Roca.  Ideology was probably the reason why they were doing it.  They were both a descent from Puerto Rico and felt that the U.S. government was.  Ana Montes was actually recruited from college.  When she was in college, we saw her as an up-and-coming, very smart woman and encouraged her to go then to the United States and to a classified field.  She did, then she worked her way, all the way up to the top position in that field.

Compromise.  It's not hard to figure out what compromise means, but for compromised, they're basically a black man.  They've done something. They had relations, a legal relationship.  They were embezzled money.  Lots of things like that.  Certainly once you start down that road of giving them information, they have that capability also.  Then lastly, ego.  So those four things are probably the four things  that are major. There are other papers out there that discuss.  There's one other acronym called RASCO,  which is not by much a sociologist that has other reasons for people to do things, but those are the four basic reasons why people are spies.  John Walker was in the Department of Defense.   Aldrich Ames and Robert Hanson were actually with intelligence agencies.  

John Walker was Navy, and he provided a lot of information:  Information on Tomahawk missiles, schematics, vulnerabilities of the USS Nimitz's missile defense system, exhaustive study of how American spy satellites could be sabotaged, and finally, authentic codes needed to launch US nuclear missiles.  He had access to all that information, and he gave it to the Soviets.  It was very dangerous.  So the US government was highly concerned about this.  

Now, I went into the service myself.  I got my clearance when I was 18, and when I went in, it was 1966.  In 1966, you took a battery of tests, and to get into this field,beI'll give you this example.  It's kind of interesting. There is this other fellow and I, who both scored perfect on all the exams, but then you go through a psychological evaluation. You have a psychologist sitting in front of you, and a psychologist sitting behind you, and they keep asking you questions.  Hopefully you answered correctly, but I had some knowledge beforehand, and I had some things.  This other guy had exactly the same background that I did, and even a big one.  So I can only assume that somehow he failed the psych exam.  I don't know, but it was relatively straightforward and simple.  Of course, this is during the middle of Vietnam, and they're taking in people as rapidly as they can.  This particular field required a number of things, which is why it actually required you to be perfect on those exams, which I'll explain a little bit more. John Walker and his family were so damaging that the Department of Defense decided that they had to actually do something about it. 
 There was a commission that was set up. It was called the Stilwell Commission.  The Stilwell Commission came up with the idea that they should actually create a Department of Defense entity called the Personnel Security and Security Research Center, which is in Monterey, CA.  My wife and I have been there.  I've been to visit a friend of mine who works there.  That facility has predominantly sociologists and psychologists, and their purpose at this point is to evaluate anybody who has ever spied for another country or another American who has spied against the United States and given information for another country because what they want to do is how can you identify someone who may be leaning towards giving, has an ideological, like Ana Montes.  Is there a way she could have been identified beforehand before you gave her that clearance and put her in that position?  So this group started in 1986 in Monterey.  It's right close to the Defense Manpower Data Center West, if anybody knows what that is, or the Naval Postgraduate School.  So they already had lots of personnel security researchers there. This facility now comes under the Office of People Analytics.

They do a lot of studies of people because we've had in recent years problems with gangs joining in the military and gaining the knowledge and capability of war fighting and then taking it back to their gangs afterwards. That's been a real problem for us in Iraq and Iran.  Their gang signs have been shown on tanks and stuff like that.  Have you seen that?  These people study those people also to try to figure out whether or not there are ways to identify these people and what are they.  So PERSERC is an important facility.  They publish a lot of very interesting papers, which if anybody's really interested about spies and spying and the folks who have done it, can read.  They talk about Alrich Ames, Wen Ho Lee, lots of people who are actually, have been written up by these folks. So one espionage and other compromises of national security.  So can you think of other compromises of national security that happened in recent years besides spies? 

There is the guardsman in Massachusetts and Erick Snowden.  The idea is it's not just spies, you're concerned about, it's other people who take information and just kind of put it out there because they think it should be.  They've done studies on this kind of thing as well to try to identify that.  

Now, if you're really interested in the whole process of it, this guy here was a former CIA covert ops guy.  I worked with him for quite a few years, Chief of Station, Counterterrorism Chief for South and Southeast Asia, and he's published a book called “Recruiter: Spying and the Lost Art of American Intelligence”.  If you have an interest in something that is fun to read, it's an interesting book.  PERSEREC has also published “Changes in Espionage by Americans”. 

So how has espionage changed your time? You know, early on it was Ana Montes was a very interesting one.  Ana Montes did not remove any classified information from the workplace.  She memorized it. She had a tremendous memory.  She would memorize it, go back to her apartment, write it all down, and then she would give it to Cuba.  Well, that's the same way Klaus Fuchs took information out of the Manhattan Project.  So how do you stop somebody who does that?  That's harder. It's a harder thing.  So anyway, they've studied people like that as well.

Let's talk about what I call my first experience with meeting a Soviet agent.  I know someone in this town that was the next-door neighbor of Wen Ho Lee.  This neighbor swears that he couldn’t be a spy.  He was such a nice man.  The whole idea of being a spy is someone that you would never suspect of being a spy.  So it is not impossible that you may know someone who is doing it.  You would be shocked.

In 1968, after going to intelligence school, I was sent to a U.S. Air Force Security Service (it no longer exists because it was subsumed into another service) listening post on the Black Sea.  This was during the time Soviet Premier Khrushchev was pounding his shoe on the desk at the United Nations.  This is what he didn’t like: all these listening post listening to what the Russians were doing.  I was in Samsun, Turkey.  The pictures being shown were not his because his are still on 35 mm slides.  This first picture was of the town from the top of a hill at the edge of town.  The administrative area for the base was behind the photographer.  I had an encounter with a Soviet agent in the town.  At that time, Samsun was the third largest town in Turkey, about 200,000 people.  The average family income was about $64 per year.  They were extremely poor.  Most of the people in this town had no education, maybe first or second grade.  Many of them could not read or write.  Most of them had broken English.  There was one doctor in the town.  The town had many cars, but one street light in this town of 200,000.  So we would always hire Turkish drivers because it was so crazy.     

He then showed a map of the Black Sea area with white lines showing the borders of the countries in the 1960s.  In the upper left is Romania.   Up on the top left is Romania, and then Ukraine, and then Russia.  Now, the USSR, the former Soviet Union countries, went from Moldova to Ukraine, to Russia, to Georgia, and to Armenia.  That's all those countries that were part of the USSR when I was there doing this work.  In Crimea, you see a place there, I don't know if you can see right in the middle of this, it was  Sevastopol.  Sevastopol was the naval facility for the Russians, the Soviets, as a port that did not ice over in winter. So they have all their ships there.  You've probably heard during the Ukraine War, as a matter of fact, they're getting ready, they are moving.  They moved their ships out of there because they've been harassed by the Ukrainians.  They're moving the naval ships from here, a country called Abkhazia, which is a breakaway part of Georgia.  Georgia separated from Russia, they had the war between Russia and Georgia.  Then Abkhazia is basically Russian occupied part of Georgia.  It's not part of Russia, it's part of Georgia, but it's occupied by the Russians. Just like Crimea, there at the top center.  That's true, but it's a real concern to a lot of people what they're doing, particularly the Georgians who don't like the idea that that's happening.  

You see four arrows.  Trabzon, this is Samsun, this is Sinop, and over here is Karamursel.   This is Istanbul right here, and the Bosphorus is right there.   Those sites are the ones that we had in the 60s that we used to monitor all operations of the USSR.  In this area down here, Istanbul was in From Russia With Love.  That's where everything was going on, because any ship that went out of the Black Sea had to go through there.  So you could monitor naval operations, everything going on, going through there.

So pretty much every country had their agents down there.  In that movie, they talked about the Bulgarians and the Soviets and the Turks and so on.  

Then up here is what they call the Kerch Straits. It's to the Sea of Azov which is where a lot of Russian ships come from, and they go through the Kerch Straits, You've probably seen the bridge that's in there, where the Ukraine's have come and blown it up.  So that's another important feature of this area.

Then up in the upper right-hand corner, it says Volgograd and Kapustin Yar.  Volgograd is, I'll show you more up in that direction, but Kapustin Yar at the time was the area where all the space shots were coming from and all the missile testing that Soviet was doing at the time, was in that area.  So all of our monitoring was going on to monitor all of their missiles, all of their telemetry, their space shots, their naval operations, and all of their air force operations.

 That's why we had so many different listening posts because there were so many different things to collect.  All of the information that we were obtaining went to the National Security Agency, Fort Meade, Maryland, so they could kind of combine it because there are others.  It was Army, Air Force, Navy, pretty much everybody.  

This is the site itself.  In the inset in the upper left, you can see that grouping of buildings.  That's the administrative area for our site.  It had a little over 300 and some people.   Less than a third of that would have been intelligence analysts like myself.  The rest were all support personnel.  Kapustin Yar was about 800 miles towards the north, and Sevastopol was to the north.  We had Russian interpreters.  We had people that would pick up Morse code transmissions in Russian and would translate it.   There were people who would sit with their headphones on, and they'd tune back and forth through channels, pick up something, and they'd just type it all out.  Some of those guys would literally go crazy, literally, seeking mental health help, they'd call them Diddybops, because they would just listen to all this dash, dash, dash, dash.  If you figure listening to that for 8 hours a day, for months at a time, you kind of go nuts.  We had people who did that, and then a small group of us did all the signals intelligence and the electronics intelligence. 

We would be, up on the field right over here. You can see all these little folks with things.  None of those are radars. These are all antennas that were used to collect signals of all different types. It was cutting edge technology at that time.  It was very interesting.  We were going from, when I first got there, everything was vacuum tube technology, and by the time I left there, it was all semiconductors.  So it really changed quite a bit.

This is what the site looked like.  There's a reason for me explaining all this stuff.  I'll get to it in a minute.  These are all dorms of shift work.  This is Abel, Baker, Charlie, and the flight, as I call it.   These people in these dorms, we look for swings, mids, and days, or be off.  The idea is you have to have them kind of all together so you didn't disrupt the people in other shifts.  This was for senior enlisted people who were not on shifts.  This was the mess hall. This is the officers' quarters.  This is the upper level of non-commissioned officers' quarters. This was the administrative area.  The colonel who ran the site, and all the senior administrative people were there.  This is the non-commissioned officers' club and the airman's club.  There was no officers' club because there were only a handful of officers there.  This was the Air Force Exchange.  This was the mail room, and this was the gym.  This was a two-lane bowling alley.  The only reason they did that is because that's where they could keep you over there longer.  What you had on your site depended on how long you could be there.  For us, that was 18 months.  If we had a swimming pool, it would be for two years.  But that's what they did.  

Now, we hired a lot of Turkish people on the site because you had to do landscaping, maintenance stuff. whatever it is. houseboys, cleaning rooms, working the mess hall.  They didn't want to bring military folks over to do those jobs.   So there's a lot of contract people on the site.  Even in the non-commissioned officers' club and the airman's club, all those places had Turkish, some German people also that were part of the company there.  This is a little closer look at some of the equipment.  The reason why Soviets would be so interested is the design of the antennas and how far or what we could pick up.  We're of extreme interest to them.  They would actually fly MIGs would fly over our site and buzz us.  It was quite interesting to see. Then, a little south of us, there was a NATO air base.  In the MIGs, they come zooming across basically at wave height, or 100 feet off the Black Sea.  Once we picked these things up, we would alert the NATO guys.  They'd send up the fighters, and they'd chase them out.  It was this kind of war games thing that went on in West Germany, all along between West Germany and East Germany.  The planes would fly right towards the border and then turn.  We would do that. They would do that.  The idea is to figure out what people are going to do. 

One of the things that we would do with all this fancy stuff is to try to learn what the capabilities were of the Russians and Soviets.  If they had any particular kind of aircraft, what radars did it have on it?  What are the modes of the radar?  It had fire control, so it's going to send off a missile.

 What are the different modes of the missile?  If you want to jam it, what are its capabilities?  We went to intelligence school.  We also went to electronic school.  We could understand how electronic circuitry worked so we could interpret what was going on.  We picked on the signals.  
The reason why I actually have hearing aids today is because of this work, because I had to have headphones on, and we would sit there dialing through frequencies.

 You're also changing the azimuth of your antenna.  You pick up a little blip on the display and then you zoom in on it.  You're trying to figure out what is this thing.  It could be a Navy ship. It could be a tank. It could be any kind of aircraft.  It could be an interesting thing. Any time there's any kind of shot, whether it was a Sputnik or a missile shot, we knew it was going to happen before it happened so we could be ready for it when it happened.

 One other thing I like to tell people about that which people didn't realize.  When the first Sputniks went up, they went up there, and they would take pictures and stuff like that.  The idea is that they had it set up so that they would tell you when it went over Russia, and it would dump its information.  We learned how to do that so we actually would dump the information before it got to Russia.  Therefore we would have it, and they wouldn't.  That was never really published.  It was kind of a fun thing that we figured out.  We figured out how it worked anyway.

This is actually one of the later units.  These at the top and to the right are some of the later consoles that were semiconductors.  As I said, when I started initially doing that, it was vacuum tubes.  They generated so much heat, they actually had to be in a different building.  These are basically what we called pre-amplifiers, whereas the amplifiers were in the other ones.  We didn't have recorders.  This is supposed to be cutting edge, but we didn't have them.  What we had was one of these things, for example.  This is called a rust track recorder, which is actually a paper with an ink thing on it.  So we tried to record the signals, and we had to break out the signals. 
Signals have a radio frequency signal and another signal, which is superimposed on that.  With all this equipment that you're trying to separate out the information out of this whole thing and then record it.  We also had CRT, cathode ray tube, oscilloscopes back in those days.  It was really cutting edge at that time, and now these things are in museums, of course.  

This is a flight.   It was 30-some people, but only eight to ten of us were actually intelligence.  The rest of them were all support.  You needed electronics guys who took our equipment when it broke down.   Somebody had to fix it.  You needed administrative people, and so on.  The people that would go to work together.  So there were very few people who actually did intelligence work.  Knowing who those people are is important to the Soviets.  Keep that in mind for a minute.  

You know that back in the 50s and 60s, everything looked black and white.   right?  These were early leads.   They realized they were black and white.  I'm going to say I didn't take these pictures, but they were taken about the same time.   These are Turkish Askeri soldiers right here.  I can tell because they're all marching together, and I can tell you that the kind of hat they wore tells you what those were.  Those are Askeri soldiers from everywhere, and they actually were the ones that protected our site.  We didn't even have American soldiers.  Matter of fact, our security guards didn't even have bullets in their guns.  The Askeri soldiers were considered some of the most vicious military in the world next to the Koreans and some others because they were told basically that if they lowered their guns, they pulled the trigger.   So you don't mess with these guys.  They have almost no education.  They've just been trained to be military and that's it.  

You see these cars.  About the newest one, I think this is about a 60’s Chevy.   Most of the cars are American classic cars.  They were actually brought over by GIs who realized that if they brought a car over, they could sell it for a lot of money because if you were Turkish and you wanted to buy one of these from the U.S.  it would cost you 10 grand.  
That's equivalent to about $100,000.  So, obviously GIs did it, The military finally cut that off.   While I was there, you couldn't do that anymore.  You could bring your car over but you had to take it back with you.  

About in the middle of this picture and two blocks over was where I ran into this guy.  It's important to realize what it looked like.  In the sense, it's a very poor area, as I said, $64 a year.  Most people are uneducated.  If you go talk to these people in these shops, they don't speak any English.  So, you've got to learn to speak Turkish or Arabic or something like that.   I actually bought one of these from the guy in this shop.  I went down there many times.  The other thing I'd like to point out is you have a hard time seeing it.  There's a little door right here.  If that door opens, you run.  Because they don't have any plumbing in this town and they have straw on the floor, that's their bathroom.   They just shove it out that door into the street, and they have no sewers.  You can see the water in the street there, and you see this guy here, he's got a little cart.  He goes along with a broom and a cleaner, and he picks all that stuff up. Then they use it as fertilizer.  Now, this guy here is dressed very calmly, kind of baggy pants, you can see kind of how it goes down tight around his feet, kind of a baggy jacket, and a flat hat is a color.  That was like kind of 1920s or 1930s garments that these people would wear.  That was very customary. 

That ship is, it's called the Russian “White Ship”.  Twice a week, there would be a ship that would come from Novorosslysk, which is kind of in the northeast part of the Black Sea, down to Sansun, and then it would go to Travsan and also go to Istanbul.  It would come here twice a week.  Russians could get off and could be in Turkey for 60 days without a visa.  So there's a lot of goings and comings.  There were people who kept an eye on those things.  We didn't do that.  That wasn't our job, but I saw a lot of Russians there, certainly or people from some of the other, maybe Baltic states or whatever it is.

 But Russia had free access to this area and certainly they well knew about all of our sites.  

This is a taxi driver here and the 1965 Chevy, he's driving.  He knows his shirt's kind of just disheveled and so forth.  This is a houseboy, and he is dressed pretty much like they all are.  Almost all these guys have black hair and black mustache.  A very common, sight.  In the upper right-hand corner there, those are gypsies which I mentioned that in From Russia With Love, there's a scene in there where Bond's with the gypsies.  You do see them.  I was once by myself in an area where I saw a bunch of them with a truck and all that kind of stuff like you saw in the movie, just really eyeballing me, when I was kind of concerned about my security at that point.  Then in the bottom right, I believe that's Istanbul, and that's how the women were dressing.  

So the apparel that you see here is really important because we're going, two of my friends and I are walking down the street and this guy comes walking towards us, he was dressed kind of like that.  He's wearing a plaid long-sleeved shirt that's pressed.  He's wearing nice pleated pants, nice shoes, no dirt, you know.  I mean, the guy looks like he's western.

He didn't have a beard.  This isn't him, it's just a picture of him.  He comes up to us as we're walking down the street, and he says, hello, I mean he spoke perfect English.  Nobody in this area speaks perfect English, not even the doctor.  He engages us in some discussion, and wants to offer us a glass of Coke.  There were three of us, and one of him, so I figured, we have we got to lose because there's three of us.  So we go within this chai house about two blocks away because Coke is not sold here. We didn't know that actually at that particular moment that you would only buy it on the black market.  So coke was $5.  Now this is 1968.  $5 is equivalent of about $20 today per Coke, and he's buying four Cokes.  He's looking for a job.  He's spending like almost a whole year's income in one session buying his Cokes which was a little  bizarre.  So I call this spotting.  He spotted us, right?  He spotted us walking.  There are no other Americans there.  People are not vacationing on the site.  Even though we're not in uniform, he knew we were military.  We never traveled in uniform while I was over here.  We always had to travel  in plain clothes, but you stick up like the sore thumb.  You can't help it.

 Of course we're chatting together with each other in English.  So we talked to him and tried to get some information out of him.  He tells us he's from Ankara, the capital of Turkey, which is about 200 miles southwest of Sansun.   He speaks several languages, including Greek and Russian, Turkish and English.  That's really unusual.  He recently graduated from Ankara University.   At that time, there were only about two universities in Turkey.  There were quite a few today.  In fact, one's at that site, the site where we were, is now a university site.   He came there looking for a job in business.  He didn't find any job prospects, which isn't surprising, because I don't know where somebody with his qualifications would actually find a job in Sansun.  So that was a little bit unusual.   We did ask him where he lived, but he wouldn't tell us.  He maneuvered away about giving us his home address.  He had no phone.  Of course, Britain is helping with that.

 He said he could be reached here I said Tuesdays or Thursdays.  I don't remember what, two days a week it was now.  This was 55 years ago, but a couple of days a week he would be in this tea house.  Tea houses, by the way, that's where he was the host.  They're very unhygienic places. People don't wash, so there's a lot of body odor, and you don't really want to be inside a restaurant, particularly, and the Turkish cigarettes smelled like terrible.   So we would sit outside.
We chatted with him for a couple of hours.  He asked us all these questions.  Where are you from?  How many people came with you?  How long are you going to be here?  Are you doing any interesting work?  Just all kinds of stuff.  Now, if you go to intelligence school, they'll tell you that.  Look out for people who start asking you these kinds of questions, because, as I mentioned, there's only so many people at this site who do intelligence work.  Therefore knowing where you came from, to them, is important.

 If I said I had come from Peasly Air Force Base, that they probably would know what I did.  The people who were linguists came from Monterey.  The people who were signals came from Peasly.  If you knew that.  So we were always told to have ready lies.  You'd tell them things which were totally untrue, and so forth.  He was a pretty nice fellow, but we all figured out that he was actually searching for information.  Trying to identify, maybe assess, whether we had information that might be of use to them.  He spoke very good English, and he asked me, or asked us, are there any available civilian jobs that require English?  We said we would get back to him. and so I went. 

As it turns out, I knew the fellow who was the CIA station chief in Turkey.  He would come to our site.  I relayed all this information to him, and he said it sounded very interesting, and he was interested.  He wanted me to get him a job up at the site.  Since he spoke English, he was obviously well educated.  He could do lots of things, but the best place to actually get him was in the non-commission officer's club.  Because there's always people in there, he could be observed basically the whole time he's on site.  That's what they wanted.   They didn't want him roaming around someplace where we couldn't really watch.  Because with landscaping, you wanted to keep an eye on him, and it might be obvious that he was being watched. So this was in the NCO Club.  Maybe two or three weeks, I don't remember exactly, because I was doing shift work, there were only certain times that I would be there, and he would be there. Then I checked in with him.

Then he finally disappeared after two or three weeks. I communicated again with the CIA station chief, and he kind of chuckled or laughed a little bit when I asked him, what happened to Mustafa.  He said, well, I really can't tell you that, and that was kind of the end of it.  Some other people, I'm giving talks like this at other places, asked, did we kill him?  Why were we killing him?  He didn't know anything.  He hadn't stolen anything of any value at this point. I think more likely is that we turned him.  He became one of our assets. This guy could speak all those languages, and he looks like he fit in anywhere.  He would go just about anywhere.  Although, when he was in the NCO Club, I do know that the other waiters in the club did not like him.  They would not say why.  I'm not sure exactly what it was.  Maybe they knew that he was an agent or something.  They wouldn't say.  Those jobs were so coveted because they would get tips and things, and they would have a steady income.  

In this town, the doctor in the town would spend more time up in our site treating our people than he did in the town of 200,000 because we would pay.  In town, he'd probably get nothing, and jobs paid very little anyway.

If you had a job up in the site, you were gold.  Even if you were a houseboy, because we would tip houseboys.  That's pretty much it.  I think, I said there are other cases, situations after that.  So that's the club.  A lot of people would go in there, and they would drink and talk and so forth.  Of course, we were told not to talk about anything that we see, observe, any events.  You know you wouldn't talk about those things.   It's just like here.  You go through the annual briefings on classified information. Even back in those days, we did the same thing.

That was my one obvious experience.  I had others while working at the United Nations.  A person I was working with told me that there was a Chinese agent in one of the classes I was teaching.  The person I worked for at the U.N. used to work for me.  It is an incestuous business.  People move around a lot.  This person was former CIA and came to work for our company then worked for Hans Blips as his deputy secretary.    

This transcription was assisted by TurboScribe.ai.
IN MEMORIAM
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Irvin Schlenker

September 12, 1926 — January 16, 2024

Major Irvin “Irv” Schlenker, a proud and decorated veteran of the Army, passed away peacefully surrounded by family on January 16th, 2024.  Irv was born on September 12th, 1926 in McLaughlin, South Dakota to his parents, Chris and Emily Schlenker. At 18 years-old, he was drafted to the Army. From 1944 to 1965, he served in the 88th Infantry Division of the Army in various locations throughout the United States, Europe, and Asia. Irv aided in World War II, the Korean War, and the Vietnam War. Most notably, Irv was assigned to the US Army force, TRUST, Trieste United States Troops. The mission of TRUST was to maintain order in the Free Territory of Trieste and to support the policies of the Allied Military Government. Irv met his beloved wife, Edda Galli, while stationed in Trieste, Italy. After serving in the Army, Irv was involved in many startup businesses. When he wasn’t working, Irv had a passion for volunteering as a Mason for Shriners International and was an active member of Redeemer Lutheran Church. He also had a great passion for telling jokes with his infectious laugh and smile. Irv was preceded in death by his nine brothers and two sisters. He is survived by his brother Clarence and sister Betty, children Diana, Errol, Robert, and Larry, grandchildren, Stephanie, Katie, Dusty, Christian, Lara and Samantha, and great grandchildren Connor, Kylar, Kasyn, Ryder, and Sadie.
Major Schlenker joined MOWW in 1978 well before the chapters in New Mexico were formed.  He was a founding member of the Albuquerque Chapter.  He served in many roles at the chapter and higher levels ending up as a General Staff Officer Emeritus of the Order.  He was also an instructor at the Sunbelt Patriotic Youth Conferences.
Major Schlenker was buried in Santa Fe National Cemetery on February 9th.
LAHS NJROTC news
Welcome back to this month's newsletter for LAHS NJROTC! We are enjoying the new semester so far. We have accomplished many great things, and the rest of the semester is packed with events. At the beginning of the month, we started the selection process for our new cadet staff for next year.  We can't wait to start the interview process at the end of February!  Topper Company also had our Quarter 2 advancement ceremony.  This was one to remember. Many of our cadets got their new ranks and some more bling for their uniforms.  Our First Lieutenant Commanders and Senior Chief Petty Officers were also pinned, which was not possible before this year. Please congratulate those that have advanced! 
During the last week of January many of our cadets went to the middle school on our yearly recruiting trip. They all had so much fun meeting and teaching the middle schoolers what NJROTC is all about!   For the last couple of weeks, we have been preparing our classes for our annual AMI inspection next month. During classes we have been working on our marching and perfecting our uniforms for when we meet our Area 20 Manager Lieutenant Commander George Murga. We have been working to perfect AMI for the whole year and we can't wait to show our skills! 
Moreover, our teams have been working hard to get ready for our upcoming meets that are coming up at the end of February and the beginning of March. Topper Company exhibition teams are ready to debut their work in Albuquerque.  We miss getting out there and winning gold. 
Lastly, we have our food drive coming up. We are asking for donations of canned goods and other foods for LA Cares. This year our goal is to reach over 1,000 items donated please help us reach this number! That's all for now thank you for reading and we will see you next month. 
C/ENS Alana Hinojosa
AWARDS

[image: image4.jpg]



MG Miles Chapter Commander LTC Gregg Giesler USA (Ret) presents Girl Scouts USA Gold Award Certificates of Recognition to the ten 2023 recipients from the Girl Scouts of New Mexico Trails Council.

Region XIII Fall Meeting
The Region XIII Fall Meeting began with VCINC CAPT. Edward Gantt describing the proposed National Youth Civics Summit.  Details of his presentation are in the November-December 2023 issue of the Officer Review.  

VCINC Lt Col Marlon Ruiz made several comments. Lt Col Ruiz that Region Commander Capt Michael Halpin had to resign due to health reasons.   Lt Col Ruiz is also the Region Adjutant and is currently leading the region.  The topic he covered included leadership succession planning which most units are not doing well in.  He also reported about chapter recruiting in which many chapters have not recruited a single new member and that many chapters are below the 75% military members that are required by the IRS to maintain the IRS 501©19 tax status.  The Region Treasurer reported that all chapters have paid their annual assessments.  This report was followed by activity highlights from the department and chapter commanders including their Chapter Activity Reports for the first half of the membership year.
 NATIONAL OFFICERS

· COMMANDER IN CHIEF 
BG Victor S. Perez, USA (Ret)
perezv56@gmail.com

· VICE COMMANDER IN CHIEF
Lt Col Marlon Ruiz, USAF (Ret)

ruizmarlon08@gmail.com
· REGION XIII COMMANDER
Capt Michael J. Halpin, USMC
usmcf4gib@yahoo.com 
Region XIII website www.MOWWSCV.com

 NATIONAL STAFF

· CHIEF OF STAFF & COO
Col Michael Farrell, USMC (Ret) | chiefofstaff@moww.org
· DIRECTOR OF FINANCE
 finance@moww.org
· MANAGER, MEMBERSHIP PROGRAMS (including dues payments)
HPM Justin Hiller | membership@moww.org 
· MANAGER, MOWW STORE
Mrs. Sunny Alley | merchandise@moww.org 

Website www.moww.org
 MG MILES CHAPTER OFFICERS

Commander


LTC Gregg Giesler USA (Ret)
    
Home: 505-662-5574

    
 g.giesler@computer.org
Senior Vice Commander

MAJ Robert Hull USAF (Ret)

Home: 505-662-7950
rhull@lata.com
Adjutant
HPM Robert Malone
Home: 505-672-0248

Robert_malone2@aol.com

Treasurer

MAJ Robert Hull USAF (Ret)

Home: 505-662-7950

rhull@lata.com
COMING EVENTS 
February

12
Staff Meeting

20
Chapter Dinner – 

March



11
Staff Meeting 
19
Chapter Dinner – Glen McDuff- Project Alberta
April



8
Staff Meeting - 

16
Chapter Dinner – Christine Chandler - Legislative Session Review

21
NJROTC Awards Ceremony, Smith Auditorium - 

	JOIN MOWW ONLINE:


	MOWW Online is the new online MOWW Community portal.  It is designed for Companions to interact with their membership information.  Please see the article on page 20 of the July-August 2023 issue of the Officer Review [image: image5]here for more information on the new platform, ToucanTech.
 

There are great methods to “connect” with MOWW:
· See your membership information on-screen and make your own edits!
· Make donations via your membership information and see the receipts
· Renew your membership right from your profile page
· Add more information about yourself to the system
 
Soon, we will have more features available to all Companions, such as:
· Email blaster to send newsletters to your chapter members
· Convention registration – attached to your membership!
· No more re-typing of your information
· Chapter and Region “e-headquarters” areas
· Interact with your Chapter or Region electronically!
 
Instructions:
· At the top of the website, please click the blue button [image: image6]MOWW ONLINE.
· If this is your first time accessing (which it should be for most of you), click register.
· On the page that opens, start typing your information.  The system will search for you, and “Find” your profile.  Choose your profile in the dropdown.
· Continue clicking through the registration form.
· Once submitted, The HQ staff will “approve” your access within one business day.  You will receive emails detailing you of the submission and approval.
· Once you get the second message, please feel free to review your profile for accuracy.
· Lastly, TELL YOUR FELLOW COMPANIONS to go register!
 


	 


	

	MOWW Social Media Update

	HQs MOWW is currently managing three Social Media pages and groups on Facebook and LinkedIn.  We are using these platforms to achieve the below goals:
· Improve and enhance communication with chapters  and Companions
· Promote patriotism, love of  the country and public and military service
· Bring public and veteran awareness of MOWW and its mission
· Boost interest in chapter and Companion membership
· Promote outreach programs and engagement with the public
· Recognize national leaders - both youth leaders and adult Companion leaders
We ask that Companions on Facebook and LinkedIn please take the below steps:
1. Join the MOWW National HQs Closed Facebook Group.  This Group is only open to MOWW Companions and Chapter Patriots.  We are using this group primarily to enhance internal communication with our Companions.  Please join the group:
[image: image7]https://www.facebook.com/groups/militaryOrderoftheworldwars
2. Follow the MOWW National HQs Open Facebook page.  This page is being utilized to communicate our message and tell our story to an audience outside the Order.  Please like and follow the page:
[image: image8]https://www.facebook.com/MOWWnational
3. Follow the MOWW National HQs LinkedIn Page.  This page is being utilized to communicate our message and tell our story to an audience outside the Order.  Please like and follow the page:
[image: image9]https://www.linkedin.com/company/the-military-Order-of-the-world-wars-moww
4. Support each other by sharing MOWW content and liking posts.
 

5. Download and follow the MOWW Social Media Playbook at [image: image10]moww.org. 

MOWW VISION

A strong America, dedicated to preserving and advancing American Ideals and Founding Principles.

MOWW MISSION

The Military Order of the World Wars serves our nation and local communities by providing and supporting activities that promote and encourage responsible citizenship, patriotism, youth leadership, military and public service, veteran support, and strong national security.

MOWW STRATEGIC GOALS

Strategic Goal One: Consistently develop and deliver attractive, and high-impact community outreach programs and activities.
Strategic Goal Two:  Expand our impact through alliances and strategic partnerships with organizations that align with our missions.

Strategic Goal Three:  Increase visibility of the Order at the national and local community levels through focused communication, marketing strategies, and local community engagement.

Strategic Goal Four:  Annually grow engaged and sustainable MOWW membership.

Strategic Goal Five:  Increase revenues ensuring adequate financial resources to fulfill the Order’s mission.

Strategic Goal Six:  Increase the number of chapters and strengthen existing chapters.
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